MINUTES OF ANNUAL AND REGULAR MEETING

May 15, 2023

MONTGOMERY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

CALL TO ORDER

President Rebecca Huss called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m.

- Present: Rebecca Huss President Jeff Angelo – Vice President Carol Langley - Treasurer Ryan Londeen - Secretary Byron Sanford – Board Member Dan Walker -Board Member
- Absent: Wade Nelson Board Member

Also Present: Dave McCorquodale, Assistant City Administrator

CALL TO ORDER

OPEN PUBLIC COMMENT

No public comments were made.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. Approval of February 20, 2023 and March 20, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes.

Motion to approve the February 20, 2023 and March 20, 2023 meeting minutes was made by Jeff Angelo and seconded by Byron Sanford. All in favor. (5-0)

Ryan Londeen joined the meeting at 6:03 and voted aye for the last item.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL REPORT

No financial report for this month.

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

2. Consideration and possible action on purchasing up to fifteen(15) additional signs for the QR code

historic walking tour.

Mr. McCorquodale said MEDC purchased six signs a couple of years ago as a pilot project for the historic walking tour. Mr. McCorquodale said this request is to purchase up to 15 additional signs for a total of \$1,125.

Rebecca Huss said they had the data from the QR codes from the 7th grade project and there were 90 or so on each sign. Rebecca Huss said there is high use at certain times and not so much at other times. Rebecca Huss said it definitely does a good job of replacing some of the physical literature MEDC had paid for at a much higher expense.

Rebecca Huss asked Ryan Londeen how he felt about it since one of the pictures is of his house. Ryan Londeen said he thinks they are a good resource and the kids use them for their tours which is very helpful.

Carol Langley asked Ryan Londeen if he attached it to his fence. Ryan Londeen said the City asked him where he wanted it to be placed and they did it at their expense.

Rebecca Huss said the opposite happened at Magnolia House. Rebecca Huss said the owner had a specific place where he wanted it and he built the pole and had the light attached to the top which was at his expense because he had something very specific in mind.

Carol Langley asked if there are 15 homes where these signs will be placed. Rebecca Huss said there are 30 total buildings on the tour and this purchase would cover two-thirds of the buildings. Rebecca Huss said Fernland is one by itself as it does not have a separate one for each building in Fernland. Rebecca Huss said 15 would allow for the possibility that not everyone on the tour wishes to have something like this at their place.

Motion to purchase up to 15 additional signs for the QR code historic walking tour was made by Ryan Londeen and seconded by Jeff Angelo. All in favor. (5-0)

3. <u>Consideration and possible action on a Professional Services Agreement for engineering consulting</u> services between the MEDC and Civil Systems Engineering, Inc.

Mr. McCorquodale said at the last meeting they discussed the idea of an RFQ for services. Mr. McCorquodale said the draft for this agreement is what Rebecca Huss wanted to bring to the agenda. Rebecca Huss said it also came up at the joint meeting with Planning & Zoning and City Council that they

needed to as Jeff Angelo said, speak to TxDOT in their love language, which was facts and data, and have ready-to-go projects that met their specific criteria and also other entities to whom they might be able to receive either grant funding or other types of funding from.

Carol Langley asked how many projects this engineering company would be working on. Rebecca Huss said it is up to them to determine what they need. Carol Langley asked if they had an agenda for them to get started on. Rebecca Huss said she thinks they would need to start from scratch. Rebecca Huss said her preference would be to have a general presentation on their transportation/mobility needs as well as their demographic projections and the information they already have based on recent car counts and mobility information. Carol Langley asked if the main reason they are not using the city engineers is because they are too busy. Rebecca Huss said she thinks it is a good idea to have someone who is working specifically for them rather than getting in line behind City priorities. Carol Langley asked who is going to give them the guidance and who is going to make sure they are doing what they have been asked to do. Carol Langley asked if they would come every month and give a report on their progress. Rebecca Huss said it would be best for them to set a deliverable, then they deliver and MEDC will judge it. Jeff Angelo asked if that deliverable is contained in this agreement. Rebecca Huss said no because it is as-needed so they do not just receive money upfront. Rebecca Huss said they set the agenda.

Byron Sanford said he has had conversations with Mr. Palmer, the city engineers, Mr. McCorquodale, and Jeff Angelo regarding the need for some type of transportation advisory team. Byron Sanford said he thinks they need a transportation advisory team that focuses on excellent communications with TxDOT and county commissioners to get some oversight. Byron Sanford said as they know, staff is stretched thin, but there are some very valuable assets to consider as some are sitting right here that could be part of the oversight committee. Byron Sanford said he will need to run it by the new City Council in a workshop as soon as possible. Byron Sanford said what they need to do is create buy in, and that good inter-communication between P&Z, MEDC and the City Council will help create buy in. Byron Sanford said he would need to present this to City Council and get their input and would entertain anyone here or in the community to serve on this subcommittee which may be called a transportation advisory team or a different name altogether.

Ryan Londeen asked if this would be in conjunction with or to replace the city engineer. Byron Sanford said not to replace, but he can get someone who has engineering on this team and Ryan is a factor, Jeff is a business owner and Wade is a developer. Byron Sanford said they already have some people who might form a subcommittee to help make sure everyone is on the same page moving forward.

Jeff Angelo asked if Civil Systems Engineering is represented here tonight. Rebecca Huss said yes it is Ms. Lori Sanguedolce and Mr. Kyle Bertrand.

Jeff Angelo asked Ms. Sanguedolce and Mr. Bertrand what qualifications they have to get in TxDOT's proverbial ear.

Ms. Sanguedolce said Mr. Bertrand has been doing transportation work for well over 34 years. Ms. Sanguedolce said he has been involved as project manager on multiple TxDOT projects across the State and across their district. Ms. Sanguedolce said he also personally knows a lot of people in the Houston district, which is the district they are in. Ms. Sanguedolce said when they were doing the Downtown Plan, and the roundabout that was considered and the parking, they got everyone to the table where he personally led discussions between City staff, MEDC, and the Mayor at the time to make sure they were capturing everyone's ideas to make certain they were going in the right direction.

Rebecca Huss said that Mr. Bertrand was also the one who got the no, you cannot have pavers on the TxDOT 105 Project when it was stalled and nothing was happening and we were still getting the stiff arm. Rebecca Huss said Mr. Bertrand was the one who got TxDOT to relent and to upgrade that by talking with the right people on our behalf.

Jeff Angelo said they need to get going and the sooner they can get on TxDOT's agenda the better.

Rebecca Huss said having representation that already has the ear and a good working relationship is an important part of getting their viewpoint across whether or not they get any of the money they are also hoping to get in terms of grants. Rebecca Huss said it does matter for some of these other issues.

Dan Walker said TxDOT's vision is a bit different than what the City's vision is.

Rebecca Huss said they need to start talking early, often, and politely, not being desperate or angry, but having conversations early on using their love language which is the way to get their point across.

Ryan Londeen asked if it seemed odd to use two different engineers for the same city. Ryan Londeen said is seems like there is a lot of inefficiency there. Rebecca Huss said she actually does not think it seems odd because she does feel in some ways they do not have a different priority from City Council but in some ways they do. Rebecca Huss said she thinks they are looking much further ahead on an issue that has not necessarily captured the interest of City Council because MEDC has people who tend to be more business oriented with a viewpoint that might have a longer horizon than City Council that is looking at things like water connections where MEDC is not really asked to look at that. Rebecca Huss said the City Engineer is going to be focused on the City's priorities and not on MEDC's priorities so they are always going to be below that.

Carol Langley said MEDC is under the City so if they are working for the City then they need to be working for MEDC also. Rebecca Huss said no. Rebecca Huss said if they only have a capacity of "x" they are going to put the City's priorities ahead of MEDC's priorities in terms of urgency. Carol Langley said she understands that but they are still working on MEDC projects. Rebecca Huss said maybe, but that is not how it has been in the past. Rebecca Huss said if they have not necessarily had the time to complete everything at the same time so things get prioritized and MEDC is not necessarily on top.

Carol Langley asked when will the list be ready for those engineers. Carol Langley said she wants to know what they will be doing, when they are going to do it and how they will get back with MEDC to let them know how it is going. Dan Walker said they need to give them that scope to begin with so they know where to start. Carol Langley asked when that would begin. Rebecca Huss asked Carol Langley what she would feel comfortable with. Carol Langley asked if they had anything to give them at this meeting or would it be at the next MEDC meeting.

Jeff Angelo said they are going to collaborate in another special session with Council, MEDC, Planning and Zoning and define their scope and present it. Jeff Angelo said this was the first step. Carol Langley asked when the workshop would take place. Bryon Sanford said they would like to have two or three meetings this summer. Jeff Angelo said the goal is to get it started sooner than later. Jeff Angelo said they were discussing possibly missing the MEDC third week meeting but maybe doing something before that in June where everyone can get together to define their priorities and give them to the engineers and let them start working with TxDOT to see if they can get some traction. Jeff Angelo said these projects are long-term and may outlast their tenure.

Jeff Angelo asked if they need to hire anyone just yet. Rebecca Huss said they have been putting this decision off for months. Rebecca Huss said she thinks they can say that one of the things they are going to need is documentation of where they are at the current and future state based on their demographics and future growth. Rebecca Huss asked how bad are things going to be and why do they need bigger roads and bigger and better intersections.

Jeff Angelo said at their last meeting they said their number one priority is a mobility plan. Jeff Angelo said that is what they need right now but does not know what that looks like as he has never done one before. Jeff Angelo said if they can get the mobility plan together and get it started to get on TxDOT's agenda they can then start building the blocks to get to the end game.

Dan Walker said they have to set a target such as the FM 2854 mobility issues or what is coming more to the west from where they stopped their business.

Rebecca Huss asked Mr. Roznovsky how old their mobility plan is. Mr. Roznovsky said the City and Precinct 1 presented the joint mobility study and believes it was completed in the 2016-2017 period. Mr. Roznovsky said that plan was created prior to the Downtown Master Plan. Mr. Roznovsky said the plan was only focused on intersection improvements of existing roads and coordinating with the precincts on the Mobility Master Thoroughfare Plan.

Rebecca Huss asked if updating the Mobility Plan is an acceptable next step. Jeff Angelo said it is nice to know they already have something that has been developed and they do not have to start from scratch. Jeff Angelo said he thinks the councilmembers and Planning and Zoning need to work together and define going forward what this needs to look like and the time limit they want to have it completed by so they can begin moving forward.

Rebecca Huss asked Ms. Sanguedolce how long it would take to update a mobility plan. Ms. Sanguedolce said it can take anywhere from six to nine months. Ms. Sanguedolce said right now they are going into summer months and schools are out and traffic counts cannot be done until school is back in session. Jeff Angelo asked if it would still take that long even with an existing plan in place. Ms. Sanguedolce said yes because things change and evolve quickly. Ms. Sanguedolce said if the data is evaluated and there are holes in it or something else has come along since then you have to account for those things and it can take time because you want to look at it as a whole. Ms. Sanguedolce said you want to have the County's plans and anyone else you are adjacently tying into because they will affect you in the future. Rebecca Huss said they cannot do a mobility study without school being in session since their traffic is so driven by MISD.

Ms. Sanguedolce said the other thing built into it is the future land use of the community, which is a very important part of the mobility plan so you know where the major connections and thoroughfare need to be. Ms. Sanguedolce said you can plan it now, but if you do not know what the future land use is anticipated to be, you are not planning for the future, you are planning for now which will put you 30 years behind.

Jeff Angelos said one thing is for sure--if they do not have a mobility plan they will not be able to attract the developers they need to get the infrastructure in place for them to feel comfortable. Jeff Angelo said he thinks they need to get started sooner than later.

Ms. Sanguedolce said it is a good idea when they do a major update to include the capital improvement plan, the capital infrastructure plan, and anything like that because they all are based on these group numbers. Ms. Sanguedolce said when the mobility effects and population projections plans are all cohesive at the same time you are not paying double or triple to have to recalculate every time because if you wait a year between your future land use plan and you are in a capital improvement plan or infrastructure master plan, you have to update those numbers. Ms. Sanguedolce said good, current numbers help to make it more efficient.

Jeff Angelo asked if they are doing it in the right order by getting a mobility plan first or is there anything they can be doing in the interim to move things forward. Ms. Sanguedolce said if you are going to work on your future land use plan you need to start there because that will set your population growth, your existing land use, future land use, population growth for the area, and what is expected to come in. Ms. Sanguedolce said they are called living documents for a reason. Ms. Sanguedolce said if you do not keep them up to date, you can see if you even run six years on a cycle, because most plans are supposed to be updated five years, you are actually doing yourself a disservice as you are trying to play catch up instead of staying ahead of the curve.

Byron Sanford said he found a plan that incorporates everything Ms. Sanguedolce and everyone is saying and it started in 2010 with specific goals to reach, but with any plan, you need to go back and revise it, but it includes things that he and Gary Palmer have been saying about TIF. Byron Sanford said there are TIF agreements that are in place that have certain looks you are looking for, on McCown in this case because McCown is where they have set the strategy. Byron Sanford said he thinks they have enough to go ahead and start moving on McCown while they are doing this plan. Byron Sanford said these plans have very specific ways to get there and in it are a lot of economic driven partnerships with businesses and developers along the way. Byron Sanford said he does not know how expensive a mobility study would need to be but thinks they need to put their eyes on FM 2854. Byron Sanford said they can see some of the things that are happening and put their eyes on it and know where that is without having to wait is his point. Byron Sanford said the mobility study and the desires to have one or two or three updated and the different types of developmental areas they want to be able to designate, those plans need to progress and in the meantime they need to get going. Byron Sanford said the feeling he has is Rebecca Huss is correct, that the goal of economic development and tourism is specific to the MEDC whereas the City Council has a broader view. Byron Sanford said he does see there is merit here but there is a lot of indecision where maybe the cart is before the horse. Byron Sanford said they just had an election, people will be in different seats, there will be workshopping with Planning and Zoning as well. Byron Sanford said he would like to bring some special people in who have businesses here, farms, and TxDOT connections and bring them into the trilateral meetings and get some authority. Byron Sanford said once you get the authority at the State level the people will tend to listen better. Byron Sanford said these people need to be a part of this team that comes into our trilateral meetings and stays on top of things. Byron Sanford said staff simply do not have the time to do this.

Jeff Angelo asked Ryan Londeen since he has expertise on the engineering side if this seems logical to go at this pace and take these steps. Ryan Londeen said he is confused as to what the ultimate goal is. Ryan Londeen said the last time they had this conversation which led to the mobility study discussion is that it is okay to have relationships with the county commissioners and HGAC and TxDOT, but without a plan in place what is the point. Ryan Londeen asked if mobility is the primary concern of the MEDC and what do they mean by that. Ryan Londeen asked if it is inner city downtown mobility, is that sidewalks or is that putting signals or expanding roads. Ryan Londeen said he is not really sure what their target is. Ryan Londeen said they keep bringing up FM 2854. Ryan Londeen said that is Charlie Riley's deal, it is not their deal. Ryan Londeen said Charlie Riley has already done a mobility study for that road. Ryan Londeen said they just need to talk with Charlie Riley and see how they can help with the connectivity. Ryan Londeen said they like to focus on downtown Montgomery and want to preserve that which is part of the reason people love to come to Montgomery because of the small town feel and they are doing things downtown such as projects and studies. Ryan Londeen said if they look outside of downtown, that is a different thing. Ryan Londeen said he is not sure what their desire or goal is. Ryan Londeen asked Mr. McCorquodale if he submitted a request for a grant for a mobility study for the sidewalk. Mr. McCorquodale said it was a transportation study. Ryan Londeen asked what was the result of that. Mr. McCorquodale said applications are due June 5th. Mr. McCorquodale said he is coordinating with HGAC to obtain a TIP inclusion letter and working on a resolution to present to Council to support the plan. Mr. McCorquodale said there are lots of pieces that go into an overall mobility plan. Mr. McCorquodale said there are going to be several plans that make up the sum total of what they talk about when they talk about mobility as it can mean a lot of different things. Ryan Londeen asked what do they need to discuss with TxDOT. Ryan Londeen said they have their downtown plan and they know what they want to do on FM 149 and they have an idea of what they want to do with TxDOT through the Downtown Master Plan. Ryan Londeen said if there are specific needs like

road widening or intersection improvements then they need to have a different plan to update a previous plan they have done so they have a list of specific needs and improvements they want around the City to help improve economic development, but it is hard for him to visualize what tangibly are they trying to get out of this. Jeff Angelo said they need a scope and a deadline but they really do not need a company until they have those in place. Ryan Londeen said if they are having trouble staying on top of what TxDOT is doing, that is a City staff issue. Ryan Londeen said he does not think they need to hire an outside consultant to keep in touch with what is going on in our City.

Dan Walker asked if the City has plans to hire someone to stay on top of that. Byron Sanford said there is no hiring, it is all volunteer. Dan Walker said he would think a lot of this data would be available through all these major corporations that are moving out this way. Dan Walker said they have made massive plans before they spend millions of dollars. Dan Walker said maybe with one of these workshops they can get all of these people together like Charlie Riley and find out what they are going to do. Dan Walker said the bottom line is someone is going to have to start buying some land on the south side of town to divert this traffic around to get it to the west side. Byron Sanford said there are two significant pieces of property that are up for sale. Byron Sanford said it all transitions into town and the obvious thing is McCown closing. Byron Sanford said if McCown is going to be closed then the sidewalk issue and the whole plan fits together and that is the direction they need. Byron Sanford said for this agenda item they are not ready to do that yet.

Jeff Angelo said he appreciates Rebecca Huss putting this together because he knows it is something they all want to do but thinks they are putting the cart before the horse. Jeff Angelo said he thinks maybe they should decide what they want the scope to be, when they want it completed, and who they want to be a part in getting the final answers so they can give them something tangible when they hand it over and everyone feels comfortable with it. Jeff Angelo said this is a good start. Jeff Angelo asked if they should table the item for now. Rebecca Huss said they can do that if someone wants to second Jeff Angelo's motion.

Motion to table Professional Services Agreement for engineering consulting services between the MEDC and Civil Systems Engineering, Inc. was made by Jeff Angelo and seconded by Ryan Londeen. All in favor. (5-0)

4. Discussion on possible temporary parking solutions in and around downtown.

Ryan Londeen said maybe a parking study needs to be done because he thinks parking issues are the biggest problem they have downtown. Rebecca Huss said the Downtown Design Plan has plenty of parking but it

is mostly private. Ryan Londeen asked how do they get the ball moving forward in developing relationships with private property owners to come up with agreements so they can use their parking. Carol Langley said Richard Tramm had started that project but does not know if he was able to go to many other business owners that had extra parking.

Jeff Angelo asked if they had any legacy agreements to look at to have a starting point and see what was acceptable in the past. Mr. McCorquodale said they have one lease right now currently on a parking lot downtown but that is a bit different. Mr. McCorquodale said he thinks this would be more toward a shared parking as opposed to the City leasing a parking lot for public parking. Mr. McCorquodale said he thinks a shared parking agreement would allow two businesses to share their parking between them.

Jeff Angelo asked how do they compensate the businesses that have additional parking now or have they compensated them in the past. Mr. McCorquodale said right now the agreement they have is a dollar a year lease. Mr. McCorquodale said it is with the Jacobs lot on the north end of Liberty Street. Jeff Angelo asked if they own the property. Mr. McCorquodale said Larry Jacobs owns that parking lot. Rebecca Huss said to be clear, MEDC also paid to pave the lot. Jeff Angelo asked if the City stepped in, paved the parking lot, and then leased it back to the owner. Mr. McCorquodale said the owner still owns it and can continue to still park there. Jeff Angelo asked what happens if the owner sells the business. Rebecca Huss said they are never doing one of those again. Rebecca Huss said they paved it and then lost it. Carol Langley said they also leased the property from the telephone company on Pond Street and it is also a dollar a year. Jeff Angelo said they can look at some more creative solutions because he knows as a business owner he would never sign a dollar a year lease to allow for parking for events. Jeff Angelo said maybe if it were a free use per event and if the improvements needed to be made to some degree maybe use a topper instead of paving to make sure it is stable.

Jeff Angelo asked if the City already owns property on which they could improve. Mr. McCorquodale said he does think the conversation with a business owner to ask for some type of a shared use agreement has to start with the City finding ways to increase the amount of parking. Mr. McCorquodale said you begin the conversation by saying here is what we have done to add to the parking downtown and now we are asking everyone to share in some type of arrangement. Jeff Angelo said from his perspective they park there anyway and it is not like you can stop them. Jeff Angelo said you literally have to stand there and say go down the street or put a sign up showing parking this way because they come in for every event anyway. Jeff Angelo said if they have a big event like a wedding at Hodge Podge it can be catastrophic because they only have 75 other spaces. Jeff Angelo said he thinks it is important to be able to have a more flexible agreement so people do not feel pigeonholed into an arrangement. Jeff Angelo said he sees what Mr. McCorquodale is saying, but from a business owner's perspective he would be hesitant to go along with that but if it is a shared use for special events where it benefits everyone to have more people in the City he is sure they have a budget that would help compensate for some of the parking. Jeff Angelo asked Rebecca Huss what her thoughts were.

Rebecca Huss said generally speaking it is not the government's job to enrich private property owners. Rebecca Huss said she has a hard time doing that just so people can park their cars close to where they need to be. Rebecca Huss said the big problem is people do not want to walk anywhere and until that problem gets solved it will always feel like there is a shortage of parking spaces even if there is not.

Ryan Londeen said another option is MEDC could acquire property to put offsite parking on and increase mobility to that site through sidewalks. Ryan Londeen said he thinks part of it is people do not want to walk in the street so if they improve walkability then they can provide the offsite parking for these events. Ryan Londeen said the City has a piece of property and MEDC has a piece of property. Ryan Londeen said MEDC's property is not really conducive for parking, but they could put a few spaces on there temporarily. Ryan Londeen said if it is offsite temporary parking it does not have to be concrete but could possibly be gravel because that is not expensive.

Dan Walker said since Rebecca Huss is opposed to a lease, what would be wrong with taking a vacant lot downtown and leasing that to where you at least have some kind of protection if you did come in and put topping over it, not necessarily asphalt but gravel.

Rebecca Huss said the previous lawyer allowed them to enter into lease agreements that were very landowner friendly. Rebecca Huss said if they entered into a lease agreement they could say at the maximum this would cost them \$500 a year plus the lease term then they could afford to let that go. Dan Walker said it could be a reprieve in taxes and if you make an improvement on it their taxes do not increase because you made their property better. Dan Walker said if they do try to sell it, at least there is an out to where you say our agreement is five years so they either buy us out or there is a penalty for that.

Rebecca Huss said from a development standpoint, do they really want Montgomery asphalted or do they want it filled with additional shops to bring people in to dine and shop and stay in Montgomery. Ryan Londeen said there are places around Montgomery that if you connected a sidewalk to it people would be more likely to walk. Ryan Londeen said without a sidewalk people do not want to walk in the street. Rebecca Huss said realistically the Lutheran Church has a fabulous parking lot. Rebecca Huss said she has never seen anyone towed from there and nobody ever parks there. Rebecca Huss said they do have an unfriendly sign that says do not park, but when they rented the facility for the Quilt Walk they seemed very amenable to working more closely with the City. Rebecca Huss said they are good partners with the type of events that bring people for family friendly events to the City. Ryan Londeen asked if there could be some type of agreement they could have in place with the church. Rebecca Huss said it is too far away. Ryan Londeen said it is not. Ryan Londeen said people do not even know there is a parking lot there.

Jeff Angelo said they could reach out to a few of the other churches that have big parking lots to see if they would be willing, which would be a lot cheaper for a mobility solution. Ryan Londeen said people park in front of his house which is north of the Lutheran Church so if his house is far enough for them to walk they can certainly walk to the church parking lot. Carol Langley said at the Christmas tour and parade the parking lot at the Lutheran Church was packed.

Jeff Angelo asked what are the solutions and if they are talking about possibly approaching the business owners. Rebecca Huss said she thinks it is a great idea for someone like Jeff Angelo where he knows he has an event that is going to outstrip his parking lot to go and reach out to someone like the church. Jeff Angelo said he is willing to offer his parking lot to the City if it is available. Rebecca Huss said the City's solution at Christmas time was to run the shuttles from the MISD Stadium. Jeff Angelo said he thinks that was a great idea. Jeff Angelo said one problem is there are not event signs so they need to invest in signs, mobility and working out one day deals with the large parking lot owners who already have the infrastructure, to him that would make a lot more sense than trying to create all these legal fees with attorneys and agreements and long-term leases. Jeff Angelo said he would never consider entering into an agreement or long-term lease. Jeff Angelo said maybe they could reach out to a few property owners and see if they have an interest in helping the City out and then come up with a number that would be fair and within their budget.

Rebecca Huss said she thought the MISD Stadium worked out well because MISD was willing to let the City use it for free. Rebecca Huss said there was not a lot of money left over as the four buses were \$6,500. Rebecca Huss said it was expensive.

Ryan Londeen said that satisfies the event parking for big events but there is a lack of understanding for where parking is available for the day to day activities. Rebecca Huss said it is funny Ryan Londeen should mention that because that leads them to item #5. Ryan Londeen said putting up signage and making sure

there is adequate, nearby parking for the day to day activities is important. Rebecca Huss said the Downtown Design Plan bore that out as they do not really have a parking problem most of the time. Ryan Londeen said they have parking in the City but it is sporadic.

Jeff Angelo asked if anyone has reached out to Mr. Cheatham to see if they could use the two lots in front of Hodge Podge Lodge. Rebecca Huss said generally speaking, people do not like grass lots. Rebecca Huss said she worked the parking for the Mudbugs Festival which was grass and it was hard on the vehicles because it was not absolutely flat and had dips in it. Ryan Londeen said there are ways you can support and stabilize it or put gravel down. Rebecca Huss said again, it is an investment on someone else's property for something you only occasionally use. Dan Walker said on the other hand you are also getting to use that property so you are paying that fee of improvement to be able to use that property.

Rebecca Huss said she thinks one of the solutions the City should consider is to use the 213 Prairie Street property they purchased and turn the northern part into a lot. Jeff Angelo said if Mr. Cheatham would come along they could fit 140 cars on the property easily. Rebecca Huss said relying on a private landowner to not develop their property is a solution to a problem they only have occasionally not a legitimate solution. Rebecca Huss said they only occasionally have a parking problem; they have an event parking problem. Ryan Londeen said he thinks the City has a sidewalk and a signage problem.

Carol Langley said the streets in Montgomery do not get paved correctly so what makes her think MEDC can afford to do a parking lot when streets are not properly maintained in Montgomery. Carol Langley asked if MEDC is going to ensure that it is paved correctly and maintained because the City cannot keep up with the streets. Jeff Angelo said if it is only being used four or five times a year it should not be hard to maintain it. Jeff Angelo said they need to develop parking. Rebecca Huss said she disagrees. Carol Langley said the Downtown Master Design Plan they received had plenty of parking. Jeff Angelo asked Carol Langley if she thought there was more of a signage issue. Carol Langley said yes. Rebecca Huss said not so much sidewalk, but it is a signage problem and they need to convince people that parking is right there and where they want to go is just around the corner.

5. Update on Wayfinding Project.

Mr. McCorquodale said in late January they held the project kickoff meeting, in February the design consultant was onsite and stakeholder meetings were conducted, and last week was the steering committee meeting to look at the analysis and a few of the designs they came up with. Mr. McCorquodale said in July they are going to present to the EDC and City Council for an onsite meeting so they can see the work being

done and the options available.

Rebecca Huss said with the parking signs downtown it will make it clear there are more parking sites available and how to get them. Rebecca Huss said she thinks they can without destroying the historical nature of downtown make their parking much more accessible and visible.

Carol Langley said they were very knowledgeable of how to place the parking signs in the downtown area and on the outskirts to let the people know where the parking is. Jeff Angelo said he loves that and to focus on that as it is easier. Carol Langley said currently they just do not have the parking signs in town. Jeff Angelo said people are happy to go, they just need to know where.

Rebecca Huss said she thinks they need to do more to make their parking a more visible plan of their online presence as well. Rebecca Huss said parking is such an issue that it needs to be a clearer and more visible solution to people searching for information.

6. Consideration and possible action on cancelling the Regular Meeting scheduled for June 19, 2023.

Mr. McCorquodale said Rebecca Huss will be out of town for most of the month and the date of the meeting. Mr. McCorquodale said he will be out of town the first half of June on vacation as well. Mr. McCorquodale said they are asking the Board to cancel the regular meeting for June 2023.

Motion to cancel the Regular Meeting scheduled for June 19, 2023 was made by Byron Sanford and seconded by Ryan Londeen. All in favor. (5-0)

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT REPORTS

7. City Engineer's April 2023 report.

Mr. Roznovsky said the surveyor finally completed the work for both the waterline replacement and the master drainage plan and should be done in 30 days. Mr. Roznovsky said the sewer rehab project is substantially complete with a final walkthrough scheduled likely for next week. Mr. Roznovsky said the waterline replacement project is not planned to go to construction until the design is complete since everyone just received the survey a couple of weeks ago.

Mr. Roznovsky said ongoing plan reviews include Montgomery Summit Business Park that is doing an expansion where plans were approved back in April. Mr. Roznovsky said the Pulte Group and Montgomery Bend on FM 1097 is getting ready for approval for their first section with subsequent sections also in review.

Mr. Roznovsky said Redbird Meadows, which is the Kammerer tract on the south side of town is ongoing and is still working through some issues.

Mr. Roznovsky said Lupe Tortilla plans have been approved and they are waiting on an amended plat. Mr. Roznovsky said the location is at Buffalo Springs and SH 105 on the southeast corner. Mr. Roznovsky said they are on hold starting with construction due to Entergy and being able to get a transformer. Mr. Roznovsky said Lupe Tortilla and Discount Tire have both seen little movement on these projects because Entergy was telling them it would be 10 to 12 months for a transformer to serve their site so they did not want to get started with construction until they knew they could have power.

Byron Sanford said they did have some inquiries of power going out at specific addresses. Byron Sanford said speaking of transformers it just seems that certain areas of town seem to have a transformer. Mr. Roznovsky said over the weekend with the storms there was some power out on the north side of town and they think it could be attributed to a loose transformer.

Jeff Angelo asked who regulates who gets to be our energy provider. Mr. Roznovsky said Entergy is not part of ERCOT. Mr. Roznovsky said wherever else you have the power to choose between CenterPoint or whoever the retail provider is, Entergy service area, which is not a part of ERCOT, you do not have that ability. Mr. Roznovsky said even if you are in Harris County, the lines are still owned by CenterPoint or Reliant or another provider, but you can have the power to pick who your retail provider will be. Mr. Roznovsky said he does not have all the details of it but somehow there is a section of east Texas and up to College Station which is not in ERCOT and is part of the Entergy grid.

Rebecca Huss said it does not really matter because you are buying electrons that were generated at the power plant here or another power plant and they are coming here on the same lines that are maintained by someone, a different company we do not get to choose. Rebecca Huss said whether you are buying it from someone who buys it in the wholesale market you are still getting the same electrons.

Jeff Angelo said it is not the energy he is concerned about; it is the equipment. Rebecca Huss said it is the same. Jeff Angelo asked why are some energy providers more adept at keeping their equipment up longer. Rebecca Huss said it is the same energy equipment regardless. Rebecca Huss said the company you see on your bill, except for us, is a wholesale company that just buys it in the stock market or the long-term market and then they put their name on your bill. Dan Walker said that is the billing side of it but the real deal of the service side is they are owned by Entergy or MidSouth and they have exempted themselves from a lot of these other things. Jeff Angelo asked why some like working with MidSouth and not Entergy or CenterPoint. Jeff Angelo said he does not understand. Rebecca Huss said it is just like the water distribution, they have a monopoly on the area. Jeff Angelo said it is almost like when SuddenLink was the only game in town. Rebecca Huss said no not like that. Rebecca Huss said more like when the City provides all the water over there and sometimes we adjust the borders in between based on certain things, but it is because it is an infrastructure based monopoly. Dan Walker said it is just a shame we are slowing progress because someone cannot get to it. Ryan Londeen said it has always been that way.

Mr. Roznovsky said they are working through a right-of-way acquisition on the Atkins Creek and FM 1097 drainage improvements plan.

Mr. Roznovsky said the access management plan along SH-105 from Grimes County line to Shepperd Street is not scheduled until phase III and phase I is not supposed to begin until summer of 2025.

Mr. Roznovsky said TxDOT is finishing the design for the FM 1097 and Buffalo Springs traffic signal. Mr. Roznovsky said it should be done in June but they do not have an expected construction timeline. Mr. Roznovsky said SH-105 and Buffalo Springs is the same where TxDOT is wrapping up the design of those improvements.

Ryan Londeen asked where does it stop on the access management plan. Mr. Roznovsky said Shepperd Street. Ryan Londeen asked if there were no raised medians. Mr. Roznovsky said it is phased in. Mr. Roznovsky said from the preliminary drawings when you go further down there are talks of a sound wall closer to the apartments and there was access management along it with some raised medians in front of the high school dedicated turn lanes. Ryan Londeen said they need to make sure they are on top of that to make sure if there is any access management raised medians they have the chance to beautify it.

Mr. Roznovsky said the County bid the Lonestar Parkway bridge repair project at Town Creek and awarded the project at their last meeting on May 9th.

Mr. Roznovsky said the Lonestar Parkway and Buffalo Springs intersection improvements were discussed at the last Council meeting. Mr. Roznovsky said they are no longer going forward with the roundabout but will be going forward with the standard signalized intersection and improving Lonestar Parkway to add turn lanes on both sides of Buffalo Springs. Mr. Roznovsky said the County is acquiring the signal equipment and does not expect to start construction until October by the time they get the equipment in. Mr. Roznovsky said they are reviewing the plans for the roadway work and did have them move the signal equipment and poles out to allow for future widening turn lanes on Buffalo Springs. Ryan Londeen asked if the traffic poles are arms. Mr. Roznovsky said they are mast arms.

Adjourn into Closed Session in compliance with Section 551.001 etseq. Texas Government Code, to wit:

8. **551.087** (deliberation regarding economic development negotiations) of Chapter 551 of the Government Code of the State of Texas.

MEDC adjourned into Executive Session at 7:12 p.m. MEDC reconvened into Regular Session at 7:36 p.m.

POSSIBLE ACTION FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION:

Consideration and possible action on items from Executive Session.
Motion by Jeff Angelo to take no action on Executive Session and seconded by Ryan Londeen. All in favor. (5-0)

BOARD INQUIRY

No board inquiry at this time.

ADJOURNMENT

Motion by Carol Langley and seconded by Jeff Angelo to adjourn at 7:36 p.m. All in favor. (5-0)

Submitted by:

Diana Cooley, Deputy City Secretary

Date Approved: _____

Jeff Angelo, MEDC Vice-President